# AUSTRALIAN LACROSSE COUNCIL LTD

(ACN 056 806 190)

# ANNUAL REPORT 1998

Presented for consideration by members at the Sixty Seventh Annual General Meeting of the Australian Lacrosse Council Ltd (ACN 056 806 190) on 21st October, 1998

# The Australian Lacrosse Council gratefully acknowledges the assistance provided by the AUSTRALIAN SPORTS COMMISSION

Mr G. Tillotson Honorary Secretary 16 Deanswood Close Wantirna South Victoria 3152 Tel: 03 9569 9655

October, 1998

Australian Lacrosse Council Ltd - 1998 Annual Report

# CONTENTS

# 1. ALC ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE 1998

# --- 2. ALC OFFICERS - 1998

# 3. **REPORTS**

- 3.1 Chairman/Development
  - 3.1.1 Chairman
  - 3.1.2 Development
- 3.2 Director of Administration & Finance 3.2.1 Honorary Secretary
- 3.3 Director of Competition
- 3.4 Director of Media, Marketing & Promotions 3.4.1 Australian Lacrosse Journal
- 3.5 Director of National League
- 3.6 Director of Coaching & Officiating
- 3.7 International Lacrosse Federation

# 4. APPENDICES

Appendix 1:	<b>Financial Statements</b>
	- Australian Lacrosse Council Ltd
	- ALC Trust Fund
	- 1998 Australian Senior Team
	4000 1 1 11 1 40 00

- 1999 Australian Under 19 Team

Appendix 2: Awards and Office Bearers

 ALC Fellows Award - Recipients
 ALC Presidents
 ALC Certificate of Merit - Recipients
 Garland McHarg Trophy - Winners
 Best and Fairest Trophy – Winners
 ALC Directors

- ALC Directors

# Appendix 3: Player and Team Statistics

# AUSTRALIAN LACROSSE COUNCIL LTD ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE 1998

# ALC MEMBERS

- Lacrosse South Australia

alia Victorian Lacrosse Association Western Australian Lacrosse Association.

## ASSOCIATE MEMBERS

New South Wales Lacrosse Inc. Northern Territory Lacrosse Association Queensland Lacrosse Association Tasmanian Lacrosse Association

#### **AFFILIATE MEMBERS**

Australian Lacrosse Referees Association

Australian Universities Association

# ALC BOARD OF DIRECTORS

#### CHAIRMAN / DEVELOPMENT

- ILF ASC
- CAS
- AWLC
- \* F.I.I.C.
- \* Aussie Sports

#### **ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE**

- Secretary
- \* Treasurer
- Historian/Records Secretary
- \* Property Officer
- \* Solicitor
- Web Master
- \* Auditor (Reports to Members)
- Exec Director Senior Team
- National Sports Program
- \* Exec Director U19 Team
- \* Championship Organisation(s)
- \* Tournament Committee

#### MEDIA / MARKETING & PROMOTIONS

#### NATIONAL LEAGUE

#### **COACHING & OFFICIATING**

- National Technical Committee
- ' ACC
  - Referee in Chief
- National Coaching Committee

## COMPETITION

# AUSTRALIAN LACROSSE COUNCIL LTD

# **OFFICERS - 1998**

# DIRECTORS

Chairman and Development	Doug Fox
Administration and Finance & Vice Chairman	Leighton Beamsley
Competition	Peter Hobbs
Media, Marketing and Promotions	Mavis Owens
National League	Malcolm Stokes
Coaching & Officiating	Graeme Reddaway
OFFICERS	
National Exectutive Officer	Robin Weckert (resigned May 1998)
National Development Officer	Rex Wigney
Honorary Secretary	George Tillotson
Treasurer	Leighton Beamsley
Historian	Terry Allington
Property Officer	George Tillotson
Web Master	Barrie Moore
Referee In Chief	Lindsay Scott
Solicitor	Graham Hobbs
ILF Delegates	Peter Hobbs Doug Fox (Alternate Malcolm Stokes)
Auditor	Ross Melville

# CHAIRMAN

#### 1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

Messrs L. Beamsley, M. Stokes and G. Reddaway retired by rotation and were re-elected, leaving the Board of Directors unchanged from the previous year.

#### 2. MEETINGS:

The following meetings were held during 1997-1998.

1997	October (AGM)	Teleconference
	November	Melbourne
1998	February	Perth
	May	Melbourne
	August	Teleconference

#### 3. BUSINESS PLAN:

The Council's Business Plan was reviewed and updated in December following input from Directors. The Business Plan for the period 1998-2002 was distributed to State Associations and the Australian Sports Commission.

#### 4. INTERNATIONAL LACROSSE:

Peter Hobbs continued to represent Australia on the International Lacrosse Federation Development Committee which met in March in Baltimore and again in July in Baltimore. The expansion of lacrosse to new nations continues with China and Korea becoming active and new prospects emerging in Switzerland and Argentina.

Malcolm Stokes and Peter Hobbs attended the ILF meeting held in Baltimore during July immediately prior to a most successful World Series.

#### 5 COMPETITIONS:

#### 5.1 National Championships

Successful National Championships were conducted for Seniors in Melbourne during May and for Under 17 in Perth during July.

Congratulations are extended to Victoria which was successful in winning both Championships.

#### 5.2 Under 15 National Tournament

Melbourne hosted the Under 15 National Tournament during September/October 1998 with the Western Metros team from Victoria being the winner.

Of particular note was the first ever junior team appearances made by Queensland (2 teams) and Tasmania.

#### 6. REFEREES

Lindsay Scott continued his good work in the role of Referee in Chief of the Australian Lacrosse Referees Association. The Association works through its training and assessment programs to maintain and elevate officiating standards and to recruit new referees.

#### 7. LIAISON:

#### 7.1 Australian Sports Commission

Communications with the Australian Sports Commission continue to be maintained via ASC Liaison Officer Kylie Bloodworth.

The ASC provided administration, coach and referee development and participation grants over the past year and in addition supported training camp costs for the Australian team.

As part of a joint arrangement with the AWLC two part-time positions have been maintained. Ms. Robin Weckert served as National Executive Officer based in Sydney until her resignation in June. Mr. Rex Wigney has completed a successful first year as National Development Officer based in Brisbane.

#### 7.2 Member Associations

The practice of inviting State Association representatives to meet with the Board and/or attend Board sessions as observers when ALC is meeting in their State has been maintained. Both the VLA and WALA were represented at special sessions during meetings of the ALC Board.

In addition, a special players, coaches and referees forum was conducted in Melbourne during July. This forum was well attended and provided useful feedback on a range of issues affecting the future of lacrosse. 7.3 Australian Women's Lacrosse Council

Liaison with the AWLC continued via the work of individual Directors and the joint activity to co-ordinate the activities of part-time NEO and NDO positions.

7.4 Confederation of Australian Sport

The ALC maintains membership of the CAS.

#### 8. PUBLICATIONS:

The Australian Lacrosse Journal and the ALC web site have continued to provide a general communications service to lacrosse.

The congratulations and thanks of the ALC are extended to all State Association officials and interested lacrosse personnel who have contributed to these projects. Special thanks are recorded to Mavis Owens, ALC Media and Marketing Director and to Malcolm Stokes as Journal Editor for their extensive work in maintaining and improving the Journal, and to Barrie Moore and ALC Administration Director Leighton Beamsley for building and maintaining the ALC web site.

The ALC Calendar of Events, Personnel Directory, 1997 Annual Report, Business Plan and updates of Playing Rules and Tournament Handbook were produced and distributed to State Associations and, where appropriate, to clubs.

#### 9. AWARDS:

ALC awards for 1998 were as follows:

#### 9.1 ALC Fellow:

Bill Taylor from Camberwell Lacrosse Club in Victoria was recognised at the highest level by the ALC by the award of ALC Fellow. Bill has made extensive contribution to the Victorian Lacrosse Association as General Secretary and to refereeing and the Australian Lacrosse Referees Association. In addition, he has served lacrosse at national level through management roles with the Australian Box Lacrosse team and international competitions.

9.2 Isaachsen Trophy

The ALC award for the best player for 1998 in Australia was jointly won by Rob Starke of the Caulfield Lacrosse Club and Darren Nicholas of the Eltham Lacrosse Club in Victoria.

Chairman

#### 9.3 ALC Certificate of Merit

Certificates of Merit to recognise significant contributions to lacrosse were awarded to:

Graham Hobbs Andrew Erskine Mark Polden Stephen Spreadborough Mark Hickey Mavis Owens

9.4 ALC Medallion

ALC Medallions were presented to :

Australian Senior Championship winning team -- Victoria 1997 Isaachsen Trophy Winner -- M Schomburg

#### 10. APPRECIATION:

#### 10.1 ALC Officers

The ALC Board was once again supported by the honorary officers who served as Secretary, Treasurer, Historian, Auditor, Solicitor and Web Master. Thanks are recorded for their valued contributions. Special thanks are recorded to George Tillotson who continues to provide the benefit of his knowledge and experience in the role of Secretary to the Board.

#### 10.2 State Associations and Clubs

ALC expresses its thanks and congratulations for the work done in each state to maintain and build our sport. Each State Association is actively pursuing development plans designed to achieve participation growth and advancing standards.

#### 10.3 ALC Directors

My personal thanks are recorded for the considerable and highly professional contributions made by my fellow Directors on the ALC Board.

# DIRECTOR OF DEVELOPMENT

As part of the ongoing partnership with AWLC in national development, the focus over the past year has been on continued infrastructure and participation building in the developing states of New South Wales, Queensland and Tasmania. In large measure this has been made possible by the support given by the Australian Sports Commission through participation and coaching grants and through the subsidies which have enabled the employment of our joint National Executive Officer in Sydney and National Development Officer in Brisbane. Whilst both roles are parttime, they have facilitated a range of pro-active regional developments in schools and junior competitions and some broader contributions to national organisation and communications. It continues to be a key priority of the ALC to achieve viable, selfsustaining junior programs in every Australian state.

#### 1. NEW SOUTH WALES

Lacrosse NSW started what has proved to be an unsettled year with some loss of senior officials and the depletion of established teams due to player retirements and transfers.

The administrative burden of conducting the Under 17 National Championship has been cited as a source of "burn-out" for some officials. In addition, NSW received less administrative and development support as a result of the rearrangement to a part-time National Executive Officer role and the inevitable settling in period when Robin Weckert was appointed. Robin resigned in June and new arrangements are being put in place for 1998/99.

The impact of these difficulties showed directly in smaller men's and women's competitions and a slow down in the schools and junior promotional work. The Association is re-assessing its priorities and has decided to direct its key energy into junior competition development in the coming year.

#### 2. QUEENSLAND

Our National Development Officer, Rex Wigney, has provided promotional and administrative support to a maturing Queensland administration led by President, Graeme Nicholls.

The decline of the Camira Junior program produced some disappointment which has been countered by a very successful new start junior project at Caboolture. The Caboolture initiative includes good playing facilities, local primary school recruitment and good support from enthusiastic parents. In total some 45 boys and girls participated, with good retention rates and a growing sense of having established a lacrosse club which seeks a future. Of particular note has been the energy put by QLA into the raising of two junior boys teams to attend the 1998 Under 15 National boys tournament in Melbourne. This was the first ever participation in junior national competition by Queensland with a total list of 23 boys who acquitted themselves well.

At senior level the indoor men's and women's competition continues and renewed enthusiasm is being shown by younger senior players in establishing a regular senior competition.

Support in 1998 has been provided via the ALC/AWLC development program for the conduct of a Level 1 Coaching Course for eight coaches and for the major junior promotion at Caboolture.

#### 3. TASMANIA

Following a week long special recruiting program organised by the Tasmanian Association with personnel support from Rex Wigney, Jorge Menidis and Doug Fox, a ten week junior competition was conducted in Hobart involving four teams of boys and four teams of girls.

For men's lacrosse this led to the first junior team ever to represent Tasmania when fifteen boys with coaches and officials travelled to Melbourne in September for the National Under 15 Tournament. The team performed well and the exercise hopefully provided the learning and enthusiasm needed to start men's lacrosse on a growth path in Tasmania.

Support from the ALC/AWLC development program was provided for the junior recruiting and competition project and for the conduct of a Level 1 Coaching Accreditation course.

# DIRECTOR OF ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE Leighton Beamsley

#### 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.1 ALC Audited Financial Statements

The result for the year is a surplus of \$18,165 (1997 \$13,398).

The following items require specific comment.

An annual licence fee of US\$8,000 was received from Jass International for granting to them the clothing marketing rights of Australian lacrosse logos. The arrangement with Jass International is a renewal of an existing 3 year agreement. It again provided a substantial input to our revenues and allowed the ALC to undertake special projects without the need to seek additional funding from members and to return a surplus for the year.

As a result of the resignation during the 1997 year of the National Executive Director, and pending new appointments, the Director of Development sought and gained approval from the Australian Sports Commission to defer part of the annual grant to the 1998 year. Additional expenditure relating to the appointments of officers and establishment of new offices was funded during the 1998 year from the deferred income.

The ALC established a National Magazine during the 1997 year and the income and expenses relating to the first full year of operations of the magazine are recorded in the Media, Marketing and Promotions portfolio

#### 1.2 ALC Trust Fund

Funds on hand at 7 August 1998 were \$14,776.24. The funds at 30 June 1997 were \$10,013. An advance of \$500 to the 1999 Australian Under 19 team remains to be repaid. The Statement of Receipts and Payments details the sources of the funds making up the Trust.

#### 2. DIRECTORS

In accordance with the ALC Articles of Association three Directors retired by rotation at the last Annual Meeting. They were Leighton Beamsley, Graeme Reddaway and Malcolm Stokes. All offered themselves for re-election and were elected at the Annual General Meeting. At the first meeting of Directors held after the Annual Meeting Doug Fox was elected as President in accordance with the Articles of Association.

#### 3. AUDITOR

Ross Melville continues as auditor of the ALC and on behalf of the board I express our thanks for his services.

#### 4. BUSINESS PLAN / CO-OPERATIVE AGREEMENT

The development plan was again revised and performance reviewed against the Business Plan. This forms the basis of our future operations and also the basis of funding applications to Government.

#### 5. FINANCIAL ARRANGEMENTS WITH MEMBERS

The method of financial arrangement currently in place will be continued. There has not been an increase in the basis of calculating fees charged to members for a number of years. With continued Government support, strict budgeting and the welcome income from licensing no increase is envisaged in the 1998/99 year.

#### 7. ADMINISTRATION HANDBOOK

The handbook is now in the hands of all members and a restricted number of others. The handbook is updated as and when required.

A new section to the handbook, namely an International Teams Handbook was approved by the Board and issued during the year. This provides a basis of operations for Team Executive Directors and includes job descriptions and details of ALC policies applying to International Teams.

#### 8. ANNUAL REPORT

There is an ongoing function of making the Annual Report a comprehensive document, dealing with not only current year issues but recording historical information for posterity. Suggestions from members for other information that could be included in the Annual Report are welcomed.

### 9. INTERNET – HOME PAGE

As reported by the Director of Media, Marketing & Promotions Barrie Moore continued as ALC Webmaster. The web page was re-designed during the year with a view to improving the presentation of the Web site and making access to the various information included on the site more easily accessible. During the World Championships in July 1998 daily results were posted to the Web Page.

The ALC Home Page can be accessed at

## http://alc.lacrosse.org.au/

10. GENERAL

I would like to express my appreciation to the various officers for which my portfolio is responsible and in particular to George Tillotson for his untiring efforts as Honorary Secretary and Barrie Moore who acts as Web Master.

# HONORARY SECRETARY

#### 1 GENERAL

The honorary secretary functions in an administrative role in conjunction with the Director of Finance and Administration. He also acts as ALC Property Officer

### 2 INTERSTATE CLEARANCES.

Four (4) players requested and received interstate clearances during 1998 : -

J. Brewer	Glenelg (SA) to Williamstown (Victoria)
D. Spreadborough	Surrey Park (Victoria) to Subiaco (Western Australia)
N. James	Subiaco (Western Australia) to Eltham (Victoria)
B. Hamilton	Altona (Victoria) to Sturt (South Australia)

#### 3 AUSTRALIAN SPORTS COMMISSION

a) Grants. ALC acknowledges with gratitude the grant under the Sports Assistance Scheme of \$68,000 for 1998/99 under the following categories:-

Participation	\$12,500.
NSP (Training Camps)	\$13,000**
Coaching and Officiating	\$15,000
Management	\$27,500
**Allocation -	\$5,000 - 1998 Senior Australian Team.
	\$8,000 - 1999 Under 19 Team

b) Sportsnet. The ALC awaits with interest the results of the pilot study being conducted by the Commission. The ramifications to the activities of the Australian Lacrosse Council have yet to be assessed.

c) Survey. The ALC participated in an extensive survey conducted earlier in the year aimed to assess the needs of National Sporting organisations beyond 2000.

d) Anti-doping policy. ALC has provided the ASC with its Anti-doping policy . Under this policy ALC has undertaken to:-

Give ASDA timely and accurate athlete contact information

Support and assist ASDA to conduct doping control

Make its policy known to members of the lacrosse fraternity

Develop and implement, in consultation with ASDA and the International Lacrosse Federation, drug education and information programs for athletes, coaches, officials, and medical and health practitioners.

Support the initiatives of the ASC, the ILF, the IOC and the IOC to stop doping offences in sport.

e) NSP Reporting Checklists and Priorities .A comprehensive study and analysis was carried out in response to a request received from the participation division of the ASC as part of a program to determine the effectiveness of National Sporting bodies in service delivery and the priorities being established.

#### 4 FELLOWS AWARD.

The ALC Board after careful consideration of the credentials submitted in support of four (4) excellent nominees were unanimous in endorsing the nomination of Mr. L. W. (Bill) Taylor as the 1998 recipient of this prestigious award . Bill's lacrosse history spans over 60 years during which time he provided extensive service in various capacities including VLA Secretary for 10 years, manager of an Australian Box lacrosse team and many years as a senior referee. It is not surprising to note Bill's father I. J. Taylor also provided valuable support for our game, being ALC Secretary from 1934 to 1953. He was also Secretary of the WALA for 16 years before being transferred to Victoria.

#### 5 CERTIFICATES OF MERIT

Congratulations are extended to the following whose service to lacrosse was recognised by being awarded ALC Certificates of Merit:-

Graham Hobbs	- nominated by Lacrosse South Australia	
Andrew Erskine	- nominated by Lacrosse South Australia	
Mark Polden	- nominated by Lacrosse South Australia	
Stephen Spreadborough - nominated by the Victorian Lacrosse Association		
Mark Hickey - nominated by the Western Australian Lacrosse Association		
Mavis Owens - nominated by the Western Australian Lacrosse Association		

#### 6 ISAACHSEN TROPHY

For only the fourth time in the history of this trophy there were joint winners. Both Robbie Starke and Darren Nicholas of the Victorian Caulfield and Eltham clubs each received 20 votes for their performances in 17 games and a percentage of 39.2. Congratulations are extended to both players. Congratulations are also extended to Jim Sutton, Burnside, South Australia and David Spreadborough, Subiaco, Western Australia for their outstanding performances in those states.

#### 7 1998 SENIOR WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS

As reported elsewhere the Australian Team won the bronze medal in these championships conducted in Baltimore, USA. Congratulations are extended to Terry Sparks of the Victorian Eltham club, the only Australian to be named in the All World lacrosse team announced at the conclusion of the series.

#### 8 1998 NATIONAL CHAMPIONSHIPS/TOURNAMENTS

a) Reports

A full report on the senior Championship / Tournament has been received from the VLA and the 50% licence fee rebate subsequently made.

b) Trophies

Trophies were presented to the following at the conclusion of senior and under 17 series. All have subsequently been returned as required to the property officer. In line with current practice the Garland McHarg cup was been delivered to the Australian Gallery of Sport for safe keeping and possible display. The Under 15 Joe Downie shield is being held by the VLA.

i) Senior Championship /Tournament

Symonds Cup (SA vs Victoria)- VictoriaWiles Trophy (SA vs WA)- South AustraliaFoundation Cup (tournament trophy) - VictoriaReferee Medallions- to all participating refereesALC Medallions- Victorian Team membersGarland McHarg trophy - Victoria.Hobbs Trophy senior Championship Best and Fairest-Aaron Sargent (SA)Tournament Best and Fairest- Darren Nicholas (VIC)

ii) Under 17 Championship/Tournament

Mal Taylor (Championship Winner) - Victoria Volk Trophy (Championship Best and Fairest) - Scott Larkins (VIC) Tournament Best and Fairest - Luke Moore (VIC)

b) Medallions.

ALC and other prescribed medallions were provided to host Associations for presentation including the following selected in the "All Stars" teams:-

i) Seniors:

Aaron Sargent (SA) Terry Sparks (VIC) Brad Smith (WA) Mark Cleveland (VIC) Scott Garnsworthy (VIC) Ben Flemming (VIC) Robbie Stark (VIC) Jim Buchanan (VIC) Brad Skepper (VIC) Nathan Stiglich (VIC) Darren Gibson (Capt) (VIC) Thomas Cahill (WA) Darren Nicholas (VIC) Coaches:- Brian Bell, Ken Nicholls (VIC)

ii) Under 17

Tim Forbes(WA) Rodney Kisar (VIC) Justin Casagrande (SA) Leigh Perham (Capt) (SA) Nick Davis (VIC) Luke Moore (VIC) Jesse Stack (WA) Sean Clarke (WA) Kim Delfs (WA) Josh Sedgwick (VIC) Scott Press (WA) Peter Greenhalgh (SA) Scott Larkins (VIC) Coach:- David Joy (VIC)

#### c) Licence Fees

Associations will be expected in the future to lodge with ALC the full licence fee upon being given approval to conduct a national series

#### 9. CONFEDERATION OF AUSTRALIAN SPORT

The ALC retains its membership and interest in the activities of this body

The Confederation is establishing a sport policy and information line to assist members and their affiliates on tax and sport policy matters in the lead up to the Federal elections. It has also issued several papers on the perceived effects of a goods and services tax.

The Board has decided not to submit any nominations for the 1998 Sports Australia awards. In lieu it proposes to prepare guide lines for possible future nominations

The Australian Lacrosse Council was not represented at the recent Annual General Meeting of the Federation.

#### 10 SPORTS UPDATE

A series of papers covering legal matters prepared by Rigby Cooke, a Victorian firm of solicitors, are monitored and, where considered appropriate, distributed to Directors.

#### 11. TRUST FUND

As at 7 August a balance of \$14,776.24 was held in this account. An advance of \$500 has been made to the 1999 Under team management.

#### 12 PUBLIC LIABILITY

Public Liability Insurance cover has been taken out with a leading company in conjunction with the VLA

#### 13 WORK COVER

Work cover insurance has been taken out with WORKCOVER Queensland with respect to the employment of Rex Wigney

# DIRECTOR OF COMPETITION

#### Peter Hobbs

This year the sport of lacrosse in Australia had a very broad and exacting programme of competition which saw Australian lacrossers develop and excel in their fields. National Championships continued and improved, International teams toured and the Australian team participated in the most successful World Championships in the history of the sport.

### 1. WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS

The Australian Senior Lacrosse Team under the directorship of Allan Frederick and coached by John Denic participated in July in the most successful World Championships ever conducted by the International Lacrosse Federation. The World Championships were held in the city of Baltimore in the United States and involved competition by eleven nations.

After an exacting round of matches the Australian team participated in the semi-finals against Canada and were only just defeated in a very tight encounter. Australia went on to defeat the Iroquois Nationals for third position and at the end of the championship, were very pleased to have regarded the whole process as an outstanding success.

Allan Frederick and John Denic, by their organisation and coaching abilities respectively, were able to develop a programme from which young athletes could graduate to the World stage and we saw the development of quite a number of young talents which will be very beneficial for the sport in Australia in forthcoming years.

Allan and John gathered around themselves a number of excellent and qualified officials who assisted greatly in the work which was undertaken with this team. All of these officials and the players concerned are to be congratulated on their efforts and thanked for the programme which they developed for the benefit of Australian lacrosse.

#### 2. 1999 UNDER 19 WORLD SERIES

The International Lacrosse Federation in July 1997 accepted the bid of the Australian Lacrosse Council and awarded the conduct of the 1999 Under 19 World Series to Australia.

This World Series will be held at Barrett Reserve West Beach in South Australia and we look forward to an outstanding event.

The organising committee, now under the chairmanship of Allan Frederick, shows considerable abilities in the hosting of International events and with the experience of Allan Frederick, are expected to host an organised and outstanding event. Outstanding players will be seen participating in this tournament, particularly players from the University Competition in the United States and Canada and with the development of athletes in fast improving Japan mixing with the experience of England.

We, as the Australian Lacrosse Council, look forward to this event and the hosting of many lacrossers from around the world.

#### 3. INTERNATIONAL VISITS

This year saw the participation of the National Japanese Team in visits to Melbourne and Sydney and it is noted by the Japanese enthusiasm for visits to this country the closeness of our respective organisations.

Japan, of all nations participating in Baltimore, showed considerable improvement and the closeness of our organisations, I believe, made some contribution to that Japanese improvement.

#### 4. AUSTRALIAN CHAMPIONSHIPS AND TOURNAMENTS

#### 4.1 SENIOR

The Senior National Championships and Tournaments were held in May in the city of Melbourne. The hosts of these championships, the Victorian Lacrosse Association, performed outstandingly and conducted an outstanding tournament which was finally won by Victoria.

Some difficulties were encountered by various State teams with the fact that the Australian National Team was to tour the United States and participate in the World Championships within two months of this National Championship and this created a substantial burden for players and officials in the financial aspects and in the aspects of employment time.

Notwithstanding this, a successful Championship was held and this Championship did include the Fellows Dinner and a highly successful forum attended by many of the Nation's leading players, coaches and officials.

#### 4.2 UNDER 17

The National Under 17 Championship this year was conducted in Perth and once again the Western Australian Lacrosse Association are to be thanked for their conduct of a highly successful tournament. The tournament was won by Victoria continuing on their success from the Senior Tournament. The highlight of the tournament was the closeness of competition between the respective States and we look forward to the development of this tournament creating future International players for Australian lacrosse.

It was noted that this year there was no International teams participating in the tournament, however it lost none of its quality or competitiveness.

#### 4.3 UNDER 15 TOURNAMENT

Following the success of the 1997 tournament held at the Southern Districts Lacrosse Club in Adelaide when we saw a total of eight teams participating, the 1998 tournament was expected to be bigger and bolder and it certainly has been. The 1998 tournament was conducted at the Altona Lacrosse Club and was conducted by that club and under the auspices of the Victorian Lacrosse Association and with the involvement of other Victorian clubs.

The tournament included a total of eleven teams highlighted by the fact that two teams from Queensland and one from Tasmania participated. These developing States are welcomed into the under-age competition of National lacrosse and with the growth of this tournament, we expect future tournaments to lead to highly successful Under 17 and Senior Championships.

With the growth of this tournament to be eleven teams and an expectation of more during 1999 this highlights the deeds of the refereeing fraternity and the arduous nature of their duties. Referees are thanked for their participation in this and the other National tournaments of Australian lacrosse for this year and previous years.

The conduct of the Under 15 Tournament also highlights the necessity of early and accurate information from member States for tournaments of this nature do not merely pull themselves together, they come together by the efforts of individuals. The efforts of these individuals are wasted if early communication is not received from States as to their involvement and participation.

The innovation of the Under 15 Tournament has been a major success for the Australian Lacrosse Council and we hope and anticipate that it will continue to grow.

#### 5. 2002 WORLD SERIES

The 2002 World Series will be conducted in Perth Western Australia and hosted through the ALC by the Western Australian Lacrosse Association.

This Association is working assiduously at its pre-planning for that World Series and we look forward to this being a massive boost for lacrosse in this country. With eleven countries participating in the most recent Baltimore World Series, the expectation could be of thirteen to fourteen nations participating in Perth and we look forward to that happening. Our best wishes are extended to the Western Australian Lacrosse Association in their efforts for a successful World Series.

#### 6. CHAMPIONSHIP HANDBOOK

The ALC continues to monitor the Championship Handbook and receive submissions from time to time. Modifications are made where considered necessary and it continues to be a source of reference and information which States use in the conduct of National events.

#### 7. FUTURE AUSTRALIAN CHAMPIONSHIPS AND TOURNAMENTS

The ALC have determined that with the Under 19 World Series to be conducted in Adelaide that all National Championships and Tournaments will be held concurrently in the city of Adelaide. It is anticipated that a major lacrosse festival will result from this decision and we look forward to a huge lacrosse effort, endeavour and benefit from Adelaide in 1999.

#### 8. TOURNAMENT DIRECTORS

As advised previously, the ALC had a desire to appoint Tournament Directors for a three year term and to this end, Helen Keane was appointed as Under 17 Tournament Director for a term of three years. This appointment has shown the success of continuing terms and Helen is thanked for her efforts.

#### CONCLUSION

I thank the other Directors of the ALC and the Secretary for their efforts of assisting me in my portfolio during this last year. The efforts of six Directors and one Secretary to continually run and monitor the development of Australian lacrosse are untiring and I am pleased in this way to be able to recognise the efforts of those Directors.

#### INTRODUCTION

The diverse range of activities that could be embraced by this portfolio is quite extensive and limited only by the available time of the incumbent Director. However, it is pleasing to report that the year has seen the successful introduction of new projects, whilst maintaining existing ones.

All developments are in accordance with the strategies contained in the ALC Business Plan, which is constantly reviewed and updated, to ensure a positive direction.

#### 1. INTERNET

Throughout 1997-98 ALC has continued to meet its objective to develop its use of electronic communication in line with best practice.

One such practice has been the ongoing maintenance of the ALC website. This has been achieved only through the sustained efforts of ALC Webmaster, Barrie Moore, in conjunction with ALC Director, Leighton Beamsley. We are indebted to them. The site provides information on a range of topics and links to other lacrosse sites, both in Australia and overseas.

As well we have established email addresses for all ALC Directors and the ALC Secretary, keeping ALC to the forefront of adopting business practices in sporting organisations and ensuring efficient communications.

This electronic medium is a very powerful tool providing immediate access to news and information never previously experienced and was evidenced by Jake's Page during the Australian Senior Lacrosse Championship, the U17 Championship page and the World Championship site, to name a few.

#### 2. AUSTRALIAN LACROSSE JOURNAL

The publication and distribution of the Australian Lacrosse Journal comes under the auspices of this portfolio. Whilst we can be collectively proud of the achievements of this fledgling project to date (five issues produced on time and within budget) it is important to realise the journal is still some way off from reaching its potential.

However, the contribution of the editor, Malcolm Stokes, who has provided a separate report, deserves special recognition. His diligence, insight and perseverance in obtaining news are the basis for the success of the journal.

The World Championships provided a unique opportunity for the special colour feature which appeared in the September issue; the "Around the Nation" segment now incorporates reports from all States, thanks to the efforts of the editor and editorial representative in each State; and Associations are providing mailing addresses in time to meet distribution deadlines.

Without the assistance of all these people and the many others who contribute in many varied ways, the journal could not prosper.

The journal is a visible marketing tool for lacrosse. It is provided free of charge to universities, media organisations, libraries and government agencies as part of the promotions strategy. We have received positive feedback.

The challenge to develop the journal into a lacrosse publication that caters for all sections of the lacrosse community remains. It must contain colour features, exciting and interesting lacrosse editorial content with graphic photographs about which lacrosse people may well say "I'd like to see that!"

#### 3. ALC DIRECTORY

The 1998 ALC Directory was produced and distributed to clubs, State Associations, ALC Directors, ALC office bearers and affiliated associations. It provides a useful personnel reference for the lacrosse fraternity including school term dates to the year 2000 and details of important lacrosse happenings.

#### 4. PROMOTIONS COMPETITION

Congratulations to the Knox Lacrosse Club, the recipient of the Junior Promotion Category award this year with a winning entry that showed considerable media coverage had been secured for their junior lacrosse activities. However, during 1998 ALC decided to discontinue this competition mainly due to the declining entry numbers while at the same time better opportunities to secure media coverage were becoming evident.

#### 5. WORLD CHAMPIONSHIP MEDIA COVERAGE

ALC contracted JP Publications, a Sydney-based company, to provide a media service for the World Championships. Kate Cox, a journalist/photographer with JP Publications travelled to the USA and "joined" the Australian Team to provide the most comprehensive media coverage ever afforded an Australian Team. Her feature article in the September Australian Lacrosse Journal was well received.

The media coverage generated by this project included articles on four national television stations, pay TV, national print and radio, plus print and radio reports in all States. In some instances articles appeared in publications that have never printed lacrosse stories previously. In fact the Australian Associated Press commented to Kate Cox "that they had never seen such interest in a minor sport".

Kate's duties were wide-ranging - pre-event, during and after the Championships - and included the production and distribution of 60 media kits Australia-wide with follow-up telephone calls, the establishment of a fax-stream to more than 100 contacts - mostly media outlets but also State Lacrosse Associations and US additions (eg Washington Embassy), co-ordination of media interviews, daily media releases containing results, player profiles, general interest etc, plus assistance to the team's management.

The success of the project has highlighted the importance of professional personnel to maintain a media presence in the ongoing task of promoting lacrosse.

#### 6. ALC RULES

The ALC Rules were produced and distributed to State Associations in a loose leaf two-ring binder which will enable the insertion of new pages when rules are changed.

#### 7. LICENSING AGREEMENT

As reported in last year's annual report the licensing agreement has been renewed with the international company and all contract requirements duly met by both parties throughout the year. The contract provides ALC with a valuable source of revenue that has been bolstered this year by the US currency exchange.

#### 8. GENERAL

Contact with clubs and Associations has occurred throughout the year and general matters attended to. I thank clubs and Associations for their willing support.

#### CONCLUSION

Promoting the sport of lacrosse is not the sole responsibility of the Australian Lacrosse Council. It is the responsibility of everyone associated with the sport. It may take the form of articles provided to community newspapers, daily papers and other media outlets or it may be the way we present ourselves as lacrosse players, coaches, administrators.

The Australian Team has received accolades for the way in which they presented themselves both on and off the field - one example of the very best method of promotion. South Australia, as hosts of the Under 19 World Lacrosse Championships, has a wonderful opportunity to showcase our sport in 1999. However, I urge you all to "seize the day" and promote the game of lacrosse wherever possible.

I thank my fellow Directors for their support and encouragement throughout the year.

# EDITOR AUSTRALIAN LACROSSE JOURNAL Malcolm Stokes

The Australian Lacrosse Journal successfully completed its first year of operation within budget despite the absence of any advertising support from lacrosse equipment suppliers or other related service providers such as airlines.

The five issues published to date (September 1998) have all been produced and delivered to the mailing house for distribution in the first week of the month of publication.

When copies were distributed to International Lacrosse Federation delegates at the ILF meeting in Baltimore the comments were complimentary with several indicating that they would be requesting a publication like ours from their governing bodies.

The feedback, verbal and written, has been very positive from our subscribers.

As with all publications of this type, the primary problem for the editor is to attract sufficient editorial copy to be considered for publication. I have not been successful in locating suitable people who can write articles suitable for young people in their language.

While in Baltimore I met with Victoria Morehead who edits the new US "Lax Mag for Kids". That publication has 40,000 subscribers through their affiliation with US Lacrosse and sufficient advertising support from equipment suppliers and lacrosse camps to make the employment of professional photographers and journalists a viable option.

The occasion of the World Championships provided the opportunity to utilise the professional journalistic and photographic resource of a person employed primarily to provide media reports on the Australian team to Australia. I believe this was a worthwhile exercise and hope that the World Championship feature in the September 1998 issue was enjoyed.

The Australian Lacrosse Journal exists only with the support and contributions of representatives in each State, donations of photographs for use by several people, the professional expertise of our production house Mooreprint and the enthusiasm, dedication and sharp mind of ALC Media and Marketing Director, Mavis Owens, who also keeps our costs down by entering all material onto magnetic media for formatting by the experts.

Thank you all those people and others who make the Journal possible.

## DIRECTOR OF NATIONAL LEAGUE

The November, 1997 meeting of the ALC Board of Directors was briefed by the Managing Director of Active Marketing which gave both parties confidence in each other.

During this year I have travelled to Melbourne on two occasions to meet with Active Marketing, ALC President, Doug Fox, and ALC Director of Administration, Leighton Beamsley.

A formal agreement has been signed with Active Marketing which gives Active Marketing until June 30, 1999 to secure commitment of sufficient funding to operate the first year of a World Lacrosse League. The International Lacrosse Federation is also a signatory to that agreement.

In addition to negotiating the agreement with our professional consultants we have also developed a range of Concept Proposals which outline how the World Lacrosse League will operate and what the costs associated with each format would be.

After our initial proposal was considered too expensive a revised format was developed and presented. Our advice is that the cost is now not an issue but the television organisation needs to be convinced to invest this level of funding in a new "product" for television - lacrosse.

A useful information session was conducted during the Australian Championships in Melbourne on May 8 with representatives from all States in attendance. The feedback from those present was enthusiastic and positive, with useful practical ideas submitted for consideration.

The July 1998 meeting of the international Lacrosse Federation was provided with a report on progress with the project and endorsed the progress being made.

It is hoped that the televising of several 1998 World Championship games on a range of channels live in USA and delayed in both UK and Australia (Foxtel) will provide informal support for our cause.

This is an ambitious project which, if we can make it happen, will provide lacrosse with a higher profile in the sports world which it truly warrants.

I thank my fellow Board Members and the lacrosse community for your patience in the complex negotiations and processes which are essential to enable this project to "get up".

#### COACHING.

The establishment of State coaching bodies has proved to be a difficult task but this year has seen some very positive steps towards their creation.

VLA President, Mr John Harris, made significant progress this year by having three meetings with coaches from various clubs. The participants were representative of all grades and without exception all agreed that a coaches body was necessary for improvement of standards.

From these meetings a draft set of rules for a coaches forum was drawn up and circulated for consideration. (Copies available). Further action is to be taken in season 1999.

Progress on the Level 2 Coaching course is continuing but has experienced considerable delay after submission to the ACC. Modules 1 & 2 were submitted for approval prior to proceeding with completion of the other modules. Modules 1 & 2 have since received complete approval and Geoff Treloar is now moving ahead once again.

ALC was notified in May this year that our Coaches accreditation schemes had expired. The ACC was informed in a covering letter with the submission of the Level 2 Course of our current situation.

Next season, with the U19 World Series; the Senior Nationals and Junior Carnivals all in Adelaide there are tentative plans to have some well known International player/coaches visit Australia, at both Senior and Junior level, to conduct Forums in all states.

#### OFFICIATING

The introduction of the National Grading System was utilised for the first time this year. Selection for the Senior carnival in Melbourne and the Under 17's in Perth was based on the system. Copies of the rankings are now forwarded to each state for consideration by the respective state bodies and the individuals concerned. Lindsay Scott is able to speak to anyone concerned as to how their grading has evolved.

The big plus for 1998 was the adoption of our assessment system of Officials by the ILF, on a trial basis, at the World Series in Baltimore this year. Lindsay Scott was asked to join an International Panel to provide assessment to be used by the Referee in Chief and his committee for consideration of ranking for finals. The system will be used in Adelaide in 1999 and will provide information for guidance for finals selection.

I have had discussions with Sean Scott (NOP) at the ACC on our progress with competency based courses for Officials and he has since forwarded copies of the NBL courses which seem to mirror our requirements with adjustment to make them sports specific. These will be forwarded to Lindsay Scott for his consideration.

Next year will put a strain on ALRA with all of the Carnivals being conducted in Adelaide simultaneously so we will be seeking the involvement of extra International Officials similar to Baltimore this year.

# INTERNATIONAL LACROSSE FEDERATION Peter Hobbs, Malcolm Stokes

The International Lacrosse Federation met in Baltimore immediately before the commencement of the 1998 World Lacrosse Championships. Peter Hobbs and Malcolm Stokes were the delegates for Australia.

The ILF meeting was conducted over a period of three days with an additional series of meetings later in the week.

For the first time we saw a full attendance at these meetings with full member countries being entitled to two voting delegates, those full member countries being Australia, Canada, England, Iroquois Nationals, Japan, Czech Republic and the United States. All associated member countries are entitled to one delegate only, those associate members being Scotland, Wales, Sweden and Germany. With a full complement of attendees, the meetings tended to drag on with all delegates being entitled to and exercising their right of speaking.

Delegates generally conducted themselves in a proper manner with language sometimes being a barrier to consensus voting.

It is relevant to note that newer nations, particularly Germany and Wales with assistance from Sweden are now starting to play more significant roles in the conduct of International lacrosse. It has to be said that Australia's delegates, Malcolm Stokes and Peter Hobbs, do exert a major influence on the matters at hand and Australia will continue to do so through its position of being a very experienced International member of the Federation.

The ILF received reports from its various sub-committees noting particularly that the technical sub-committee and merchandising sub-committee under the chairmanship of Canada and Japan respectively, are now starting their work with the competition committee under the chairmanship of England having a significant role in the organisation of World Series.

The ILF amongst other things considered future bidding for World Championships, playing rules, development of the sport internationally, player eligibility which currently is a matter of considerable contention, appointment of a full time ILF Executive Director to be based in the United States, referee assessment, education and recruitment. As major issues, the ILF discussed the question of drugs in sport and penalties associated with infringements of these rules and continues to take a hard line on this area supported by the Australian Lacrosse Council. Consideration was also given to the establishment of regional tournaments in conjunction with World games.

#### PROMOTION

ILF is more actively promoting itself as a lacrosse organisation and delegates were issued with ILF logo embroidered shirts and caps for wearing during the Championships. Pins were also produced for distribution.

CONSTITUTION / BY LAWS

Several changes were submitted for consideration. The only successful change of any note was the elimination of the 'squad' concept. Each country is allowed only 23 players in a World Championship and no replacements or substitutes or 'reserves' are allowed. It is clear that the Constitution and ByLaws require a further review before the next meeting in Adelaide in 1999.

#### COMPETITIONS

The draw for the 1999 Under 19 World Championships program was made at this meeting.

#### MEETINGS

Arrangements for meetings of nominated personnel of various committees such as the Awards Committee and the Championship Committee were less than satisfactory. However, the awards trophies were co-ordinated for the first time by the ILF Awards Committee and this produced a much more satisfactory result than previous arrangements.

#### DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

This sub-committee is convened by Mr. Steve Stenersen of the United States and includes two other delegates being David Shuttleworth of England and Peter Hobbs from Australia. The sub-committee met in Baltimore in March 1998 and over a period of two and a half days of meetings, continued to canvass, discuss and lead in the development of our sport. The committee this year has led to a number of major developments which will assist the sport in future years. These developments include:-

- (a) Monitoring the development of lacrosse in Argentina, the development exercise which commenced through the auspices of the internet and has now extended considerably further.
- (b) Through very considerable assistance from Japan, assisted in the development of lacrosse in South Korea and China. These two nations commencing their lacrosse in various university campuses and a number of coaching clinics have been established and have been well attended and well fostered.
- (c) Examined and initiated the commencement of a development programme in Switzerland with the assistance of the German Lacrosse Association.
- (d) Commenced a programme of development in Finland through a Finniss Nation

#### OFFICE-BEARERS

Tom Hayes was elected for another two year term as President of ILF.

# **APPENDIX 1**

4

# FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Australian Lacrosse Council Ltd

ALC Trust Fund

1998 Australian Senior Team

1999 Australian Under 19 Team

## Australian Lacrosse Council Ltd

ACN 056 806 190

#### \_\_\_ DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors present their report together with the financial statements of Australian Lacrosse Council Ltd for the year ended 30 June 1998 and the auditors' report thereon.

#### DIRECTORS

The directors in office at the date of this report are:

Doug Fox Leighton Beamsley Peter Hobbs Malcolm Stokes Graeme Reddaway Mavis Owens Chairman & Development Administration & Finance Competitior National League Coaching & Officiating Media, Marketing & Promotior

#### PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the company during the course of the financial year was administration of the sport of Lacrosse. There was no significant change in the nature of the activity of the company during the year.

#### RESULT

The operating Surplus for the year amounted to \$18,165 (1997 \$13,398).

#### DIRECTORS' BENEFITS

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director of the company has received or become entitled to receive, any benefit (other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of remuneration received or due and receivable by directors shown in the financial statements, or the fixed salary of a full-time employee of the company or of a related corporation) by reason of a contract made by the company, or a related corporation, with a director or with a firm of which a director is a member, or with a company in which a director has a substantial financial interest.

Dated this  $17^{11}$  day of September 1998.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors

Doug Pox Chairman

Leighton Beamsley Director

## Australian Lacrosse Council Ltd

#### NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 1998

#### 1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

#### (a) Basis of Accounting

The accounts have been prepared on the historical cost basis. The accounts have been prepared on a consistent basis with prior years accounts.

#### (b) Taxation

The Australian Lacrosse Council Ltd is not subject to Income Tax.

### Australian Lacrosse Council Ltd

#### ACN 056 806 190

#### STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS

In the opinion of the directors of Australian Lacrosse Council Ltd:

- 1) a) The accompanying profit and loss account gives a true and fair view of the profit or loss of the company for the financial year ended 30 June 1998; and
  - b) The accompanying balance sheet gives a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at the end of the financial year.
- 2) At the date of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.
- 3) The accounts have been prepared by a competent person.
- 4) a) The company has kept such accounting records so as to correctly record and explain the transactions and financial position of the company.
  - b) The company has kept its accounting records in such a manner as would enable true and fair accounts of the company to be prepared from time to time.
  - c) The company has kept its accounting records in such a manner as would enable the accounts of the company to be conveniently and properly audited in accordance with the Corporations Law.

Dated this 17<sup>+</sup> day of September 1998.

This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors and is signed for and on behalf of the directors by.

Doug to:

Doug Fox Chairman

Leighton Beamsley Director

To the Members,

# AUSTRALIAN LACROSSE COUNCIL LTD

#### Scope

I have audited the financial report of The Australian Lacrosse Council Ltd as set out on pages 1 to 8 for the year ended 30th June 1998. The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the financial statements and the information obtained therein. I have conducted an independent audit of the financial statements in order to express an opinion on them to the Members.

My audit has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards to provide reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. My procedures included examination, on a test basis, of evidence supporting the amount and other disclosures in the financial statements, and the evaluation of significant accounting estimates. These procedures have been undertaken to form an opinion as to whether in all material respects, the financial report is presented fairly in accordance with the requirements (Urgent Issued Group Consensus Views), and statutory requirement so as to present a view of the Council which is consistent with my understanding of its financial position and the results of its operations.

The audit opinion expressed in this report has been formed on the above basis:

#### Audit opinion

In my opinion the financial report of The Australian Lacrosse Council Ltd present fairly in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards and other mandatory reporting requirements, the financial position as at 30th June 1998 and the results of its operations for the year then ended.

Da perille

Ross Melville Mount Waverley, 30th November 1998

	Balance Sheet as at 30 June 1998	
30/6/97	- <u> </u>	30/6/98
58,872 1 <b>3</b> ,398	Accumulated Reserves as at 1 July 1997 Surplus / (Deficit) for Current Year	72,27 18,16
\$72,270	Accumulated Reserves as at 30 June 1998	\$90,435
	Represented by:	
	Assets	
79,853 250 31,030 5 10 10	Cash at Bank Cash on Hand Debtors Filing Cabinet Dictaphone Fax Machine	75,06 25 37,80 1 1
\$111,158		\$113,152
	Less Liabilities	
10,958 0 3,814 7,000 16,666 450	Sundry Creditors Other Creditors Magazine Clearing Account Amount Due to Trust Account Government Grant - Deferred to 1998 Franchise Fees in Advance	15,36 2,81 4,54
\$38,888		\$22,717
\$72,270	Net Assets	\$90,435
Garlanc	d McHarg Trophy held in the custody of the Australian Lacro	sse Council

----

## Statement of Income & Expenditure - Year Ending 30 June 1998

Actual 12 Months Ended 30/6/97		Actual 12 Month Ended 30/6/98
	Income	
36,858	Administration	42,41
28,700	Competition	34,30
35,327	Development	66,96
0	National League	
10,000	Coaching & Officiating	10,60
19,608	Media, Marketing & Promotions	42,01
\$130,493	Total Income	\$196,296
	Expenses	
28,593	Administration	36,06
27,814	Competition	34,40
35,275	Development	68,00
634	National league	1,04
10,496	Coaching & Officiating	7,87
14,284	Media, Marketing & Promotions	30,74
\$117,095	Total Expense	\$178,13
	Surplus / (Deficiency)	
8,266	Administration	6,35
886	Competition	(105
53	Development	(1,039
(634)	National league	(1,041
(496)	Coaching & Officiating	2,72
5,324	Media, Marketing & Promotions	11,27
\$13,398	Total Surplus / (Deficiency)	\$18,16

Ended 30/6/97		Actual 12 Months Ended 30/6/98
	Administration	
	Income	
10,000	Government Grants	15,00
3,397	Interest	3,12
23,738	Affiliation Fees	24,26
(276)	Other Income	3
\$36,858	Total Income	\$42,416
	Expenses	
5,027	Directorate Travel	9,85
4,543	Directorate Accommodation & Meeting Expenses	6,67
4,820	Directorate - Expense Reimbursement	4,82
5,607	I L F Meeting Expenses & Subscription	1,79
4,255	Administration Costs	8,90
1,699 385	Petty Cash & Sundry Expenses	2,75
232	Confederation of Australian Sport Interest & Bank Charges	50 26
104	Administration Handbook	41
0	Publications for Re-Sale	
1,040	Isaacsson Trophy Repairs & WA Centenary Trophy	
880	Trade Mark Registration	9
\$28,593	Total Expense	\$36,065
\$8,266	Surplus / (Deficiency)	\$6,351

	Australian Lacrosse Council Ltd	
Statemer	nt of Income & Expenditure - Year Ending 30	) June 1998
Actual 12 Months Ended 30/6/97		Actual 12 Month Ended 30/6/98
	Competition	
	Income	
0 25,000 3,700 0	Government Grants Government Grants - Overseas Competition Franchise Fees Other	30,00 4,30
\$28,700	Total Income	\$34,30
	Expenses	
0	Administration Expenses	
841	Trophies, Awards & Badges Travel - Referees	1,00
1,223 0	Travel - Referees Travel - Tournament Director	2,23 45
0	Travel - Other	40 52
0	Advances - Australian Senior Team	30,00
25,000	Advances - Australian U19 Team	00,00
750	Refund - Franchise Fees	20
0	Other	
\$27,814	Total Expense	\$34,40
\$886	Surplus / (Deficiency)	(\$10:

	Australian Lacrosse Council Ltd	
Statemer	nt of Income & Expenditure - Year Ending	30 June 1998
Actual 12 Months Ended 30/6/97		Actual 12 Months Ended 30/6/98
	Development	
	Income	
25,000 25,000 (16,666) 1,993 0	Government Grants Contribution from AWLC Government Grant - Deferred to 1998 Sale of Product Other	25,000 25,000 16,666 297 0
\$35,327	Total Income	\$66,963
	Expenses	
23,434 2,280 1,028 3,950 0 3,408 1,174 0	Salaries and Oncosts Recruitment Expenses Emerging State Support Video Printing Administration Expenses NEO / NDO Equipment	35,890 515 1,021 21,928 0 0 1,745 6,903
\$35,275	Total Expense	\$68,002
\$53	Surplus / (Deficiency)	(\$1,039)

## Statement of Income & Expenditure - Year Ending 30 June 1998

Actual		Actual
12 Months		12 Month
Ended		Ended
30/6/97		30/6/98
	National League	
	Income	
0	Government Grants	
\$0	Total Income	\$(
	Expenses	
634	Administration Expenses	32
0	Travel	71
\$634	Totai Expense	\$1,04
(\$634)	Surplus / (Deficiency)	(\$1,04

<u></u>	Australian Lacrosse Council	Ltd
Statemer	nt of Income & Expenditure - Year E	nding 30 June 1998
Actual 12 Months Ended 30/6/97		Actual 12 Months Ended 30/6/98
	Coaching & Officiating	
	Income	
10,000 0	Government Grants Other	10,000 600
\$10,000	Total Income	\$10,600
	Expenses	
6,173 1,728 94 2,500 0 0 0	Conference Expenses Technical Committee Expenses Administration Expenses Course Materials Coaching Courses Assessors Training Camp Other	898 935 0 1,030 4,574 75 362
\$10,496	Total Expense	\$7,874
(\$496)	Surplus / (Deficiency)	\$2,726

### Statement of Income & Expenditure - Year Ending 30 June 1998

Actual		Actual
12 Months		12 Months
Ended		Ended
30/6/97		30/6/98
	Media, Marketing & Promotions	
	Income	
0	Government Grants	ι
10,019	Licence Fee - Japan US\$8,000	11,17:
9,589	National Magazine Income	30,84
0	Other	
\$19,608	Total Income	\$42,017
	Expenses	
569	Administration Expenses	23(
803	Publications	(
1,050	Media Publication Award	20(
1,845	Video Tapes - International Competition	(
1,000	ALC Internet Home Page	1,18€
9,018	National Magazine Expenses	29,12{
\$14,284	Total Expense	\$30,744
\$5,324	Surplus / (Deficiency)	\$11,273

Trust Account Receipts & Payments - Period Ending 30 June 1998	
--	--

	Receipts	Payments	Balance
Balance at 30 June 1997			
1986 World Series	4,968.32		4,968.32
1990 World Series	4,162.45	1,178.00	2,984.45
1992 U19 Championships	3,416.50	2,500.00	916.50
1994 World Series	11,500.00	6,957.46	4,542.54
1996 U19 Championships		2,000.00	(2,000.00)
1998 World Series		2,500.00	(2,500.00)
1999 U19 Championships		0.00	0.00
Interest	1,323.85		1,323.85
ILF Fine		200.00	(200.00)
Bank Charges		22.87	(22.87)
Balance at 30 June 1997 =	\$25,371.12	\$15,358.33	\$10,012.79
Transactions Period to 30 June 1998 1996 U19 Championships	5,211.32		5,211.32
1999 U19 Championships		500.00	(500.00)
Bank Charges		4.63	(4.63)
Interest	56.79		56.79
-	\$5,268.11	\$504.63	\$4,763.48
Balance at 30 June 1998			
1986 World Series	4,968.32		4,968.32
1990 World Series	4,162.45	1,178.00	2,984.45
1992 U19 Championships	3,416.50	2,500.00	916.50
1994 World Series	11,500.00	6,957.46	4,542.54
1996 U19 Championships	5,211.32	2,000.00	3,211.32
1998 World Series		2,500.00	(2,500.00)
1999 U19 Championships		500.00	(500.00)
Interest	1,380.64		1,380.64
ILF Fine		200.00	(200.00)
Bank Charges		27.50	(27.50)

•

1998 AU STATEMEN	JSTRALIAI T OF INCO	_	• •	JRE	
PERIOD - 1 JA	I Jan 1995 to	1 Nov 1996 to	1 Oct 1997 to	1 January 1998 to	
 	30 Oct 1996	30 Sept 1997	31 Dec 1997	30 September 1998	TOTAL
INCOME					
Government Grants					
Direct Athlete Support Scheme	48,840	0	0	0	48,840
Refund	(1,000)	0 12.049	0	0	(1,000)
Travel Assistance - Training Camps Travel Assistance - Training Camps	0	12,968 13,000	0 0	0	12,968
Grants - International Competition	0	13,000	10,000	5,000 20,000	18,000 30,000
·	47,840	25,968	10,000	25,000	108,808
	<u> </u>				
Team Members Sponsorphin Individuals	1.000	5 000	~		57.000
Sponsorship - Individuals Refund	1,000 (1,000)	5,000 0	0	70,200 0	76,200
Team Payments - USA 1996 Tour	83,959	17,450	0	0	(1,000) 101,409
Refund	0	(50)	0	0	(50)
Team Payments - 1998 Tour	0	(50)	11,655	52,146	63,801
Tour Bonds	3,700	0	0	0	3,700
Refunds	(3,554)	0	0	0	(3,554)
	84,105	22,400	11,655	122,346	240,506
Team Supporters					
Supporter Payments - USA 1996 Tour	12,000	0	0	0	12,000
Tour Bonds	300	0	0	0	300
Refunds	(300)	0	0	0	(300)
Supporter Payments - USA 1998 Tour	0	0	Õ	4,756	4,756
	12,000	0	0	4,756	16,756
Other Income					
Sponsorships / Gifts	2,376	200	(200)	31,943	34,319
Mechandise Sales	7,307	7,211	5,435	21,021	40,974
Gate Takings etc:	0	,	155	0	155
Loan - LTA 1994 Team	1,549	0	0	0	1,549
Adventising	0	0	0	7,500	7,500
Travel Rebate	0	0	0	2,331	2,331
Sale of game & Banquet Tickets	0	0	0	2,000	2,000
	11,232	7,411	5,390	64,795	88,828
Interest					
V2 Account	1,821	514	54	820	3,208
Cheque Acount	1,521	6	3	136	256
	1,932		57	956	3,464
Australian Lacrosse Council		-		-	
Australia v Team Toyota Video	1,845	0	0	0	1,845
Loan Refund of Loop	2,500	0	0	0	2,500
Refund of Loan	4,345	0	0	0	4,345
	161,454	56,299	27,102	217,853	462,708

#### 1998 AUSTRALIAN LACROSSE TEAM STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE PERIOD - 1 JANUARY 1995 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 1998

	1 Jan 1995 to 30 Oct 1996	L Nov 1996 to 30 Sept 1997	1 Oct 1997 to 31 Dec 1997	L January 1998 to 30 September 1998	TOTAL
EXPENDITURE					
Travel & Accommodation					
Travel - International	96,463	1,763	0	100,477	198,70
Travel - Domestic	10,965	34,525	3,076	8,801	57,30
Accommodation & Food - International	2,879	651	0	48,007	51,53
ILF - Refund / Subsidy	0	0	0	(13,966)	(13.96
Accommodation & Food - Domestic	775	8,826	456	3,759	13,81
1996 Tour Expenses	4,215	0	0	0	4,21
Team Setup Costs	1,774	536	0	0	2,3
Game & Banquet Tickets	0	0	0	9,000	9,0(
Allies Sponsorship Winner	0	0	0	4,000	4,00
	117,071	46,301	3,532	160.078	326,98
Services & Equipment					
Physio & Medical Equipment	248	50	38	382	7
Fitness Testing	0	0	150	75	21
Team Photographs	835	0	0	137	93
Video Tapes - etc	2,405	190	500	350	3,44
Uniforms - 1996 Touring Team	32,390	0	0	0	32,39
Uniforms	0	10,572	541	36,228	47,34
Team Facilities	0	0	1,100	6,464	7,56
Team Gifts	0	0	0	3,082	3,08
Other - Balls etc	155	22	323	1,274	1,77
Advertising Artwork	0	0	0	2,500	2,50
Advertising Agency	0	0	0	4,000	4,00
Flags & Team Banner	0	0	0	3,347	3,3-
	36,033	10.834	2,652	57,838	107,3
Administration					
Stationery, Typing etc	785	344	82	378	1,58
Secretarial	0	0	0	2,950	2,95
Telephone	515	0	0	2,328	2,8-
Bank Charges	59	246	80	349	73
Other	32	100	0	0	13
	1,391	690	162	6,006	8,24
	154,495	57,825	6,346	223,922	442.58
Excess of Income over Expenditure	6,959	(1,526)	20,755	(6,068)	20,12

\_\_\_

4

STATEMENT OF IN	1999 AUSTRALIAN UNDER 19 LACROSSE TEAM STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE PERIOD - 1 DECEMBER 1997 TO 28 OCTOBER 1998	
	1 December 1997 to 28 October 1998	TOTAL
INCOME		
Government Grants Travel Assistance - Training Camps Grants - International Competition	0 0 0	0 0 0
Team Members Levy Nationals & Levy Selection Camp Levy Bonds Refund	4,320 2,903 7,553 0 (90) 14,686	4,320 2,903 7,553 0 (90) . 14,686
Team Supporters Supporter Payments Bonds Refunds	0 0 0	0 0 0
Other Income Uniform Sales Airfares Fundraising	20 2,730 2,258 5,008	20 2,730 2,258 5,008
Interest Term Deposit Bank	0 0	0 0 0
Australian Lacrosse Council Loan Refund of Loan	500 (500) 0	500 (500) 0
	19,694	19,694

1999 AUSTRALIAN UNDER 19 LACROSSE TEAM
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
PERIOD - 1 DECEMBER 1997 TO 28 OCTOBER 1998

TOTAL	1 December 1997 to 28 October 1998	
		EXPENDITURE
		Travel & Accommodation
0	0	Travel - International
4,041	4,041	Travel - Domestic
C	0	Accommodation & Food - International
(	0	Accommodation & Food - Domestic
4,041	4,041	-
		Services & Equipment
336	336	Physio & Medical Equipment
(	0	Fitness Testing
2,884	2,884	Uniforms
-,	99	Team Facilities
(	0	Team Gifts
238	238	Other - Balls etc
3,557	3,557	-
		Administration & Other
221	221	Postage
183	183	Printing & Stationery
100	100	Web Page
388	388	Telephone
4,170	4,170	Fund raising Expenses
, (	0	Other
5,063	5,063	-
12,661		-
12,001	12,661	=
7,034	7,034	Excess of Income over Expenditure
		Excess of income over inxpenditure

÷

## **APPENDIX 2**

# AWARDS

## and

# **OFFICE BEARERS**

**ALC Fellows Award - Recipients** 

**ALC Presidents** 

ALC Certificate of Merit - Recipients

Garland McHarg Trophy - Winner

Best & Fairest Trophy - Winners

**ALC Directors** 

	n Lacrosse Counci Award - Recipients	
1987		<u></u>
Harold Horner	Nominated by	Western Australia
Laurie Turnbull		Western Australia
W. G. (Don) Hobbs		South Australia
Clive R. Carr		South Australia
E. L. Berry		Western Australia
Henry Volk		A L C Board
1988		
Frank Lansbury		Victoria
Terry Allington		Victoria
1989		
H. Balinski		Western Australia
1990		
George F. Tillotson		Victoria
1991		
Phil Humphreys		A L C Board
1993		
A. R. V. (Russell) Page		Western Australia
1994		
O. C. Isaachsen		South Australia
1995		
Ken S. Forrest		South Australia
1996		
Bill Brown		Western Australia
1997		
L. W. (Bill) Taylor		Victoria

,

.....

The award is generally presented at the Fellows Dinner held in conjunction with the following years National Championships

Australian Lacrosse Council Presidents		
R. O. Moore	1931 - 1936	
C. Lempiere Abbot	1936 - 1939	
J. C. Hutcheon	1939 - 1947	
C. E. M. Hickey	1947 - 1950	
A. E. Gordon Webb	1950 - 1953	
Justice Abbot QC	1953 - 1956	
J. L. Gordon	1956 - 1959	
R. Coldstream	1959 - 1962	
O. C. Isaachsen	1962 - 1965	
L. S. Turnbull	1965 - 1968	
H. P. Shappere	1968 - 1969	
H. Horner	1969 - 1973	
H. Volk	1973 - 1975	
I. W. Wiles	1975 - 1979	
P. A. Humphreys	1979 - 1981	
W. G. (Don) Hobbs	1981 - 1983	
P. A. Humphreys	1983 - 1990	
M. Stokes	1990 - 1994	
D. Fox	1994 -	

E.

#### SOUTH AUSTRALIA

1946		
Mr Justice Abbott	F Lancelot Parsons	C. A. M. West
A. Bertrand	A. E. Harvey	C. H. Schulz
H. Rule	H. Hockong	K. A. Brock
A. J. Lees	G. Hall	J. Martin
J. S. Muecke	R. H. Kestel	J. R. Gordon
R. J. Cook	J. D. Lee	A. M. Tonkin
C. McKenzie		
1954		
R. G. Cathie	K, J, Gellert	D. G. Gorman
W. G. Hobbs	T. D. McCormack	C. F. Melbourne
L. J. Oats	J. Langdon Parsons	W. J. B. Symonds
M. B. Selth	A. H. Taylor	A. J. Vial
1958		
L. T. Hewitson		
1960		
T. H. Fewster	W. S. Watts	K. B. Roennfeldt
1962		
C. R. Carr		
1963		
H. M. Plaisted	J. C. Wiles	K. A. Francis
1964		
O. C. Isaachsen	P. Gottschalk	I. W. Wiles
H. Holloway (A L C Nominees)		
1965		
H. R. F. Anderson	K. S. Forrest	
1966	· · ·	
V. Sigmont	E. R. Sexton	G. L. Arnold
1967		
F. C. Coggins	R. D. C. Alexander	D. B. Hamilton
1969		
V. W. C. Medlin	K. S. Forrest	P. J. Drew
1970		
K. Nesbitt	L. W. Norley	R. W. Turner
1971		
R. Bartle	E. W. Blackler	
1972		
D. G. Gomer		
1974		
J. B. Goodale		
1978		
R. K. Wood		
		•

SOUTH AUSTRALIA (Continued) 1979 P. B. Hobbs B. R. Denton 1980 T. Pinnington R. Prior P. Koshnitsky 1981 R. G. Peters 1982 C. Scarvelis 1983 D. Stevens J. Swann 1984 W. Hobbs 1985 E. Granger G. Gatley 1987 T. Tomlinson 1990 A. Carr 1991 T. Peak G. Revell 1992 J. Buxton M. Muxlow R. Flett 1994 Bruce Rosewarne Jon Claridge 1995 Dennis Mulroney Craig Treloar 1996 Peter Noble 1997 Graham Hobbs Andrew Erskine Mark Polden

#### VICTORIA

1946 E. L. E. K		
F. L. Fulton		
1948 W. J. Lampard	J. L. Beattie	A. E. G. Webb
R. Coldstream	S. Fripp	H. Rolph
G. Gray	G. J. Flood	W. McR. Russell
A. G. Hudson	H. R. Balmer	W. WICK. Russell
1955		
I. M. Dobbie	E. L. McIntyre	S. McCorkeil
I. M. Hodges	C. F. Landsbury	H, Volk
P. G. Unkenstein	W. K. Tickner	E. W. Axford
A, L. Evans	H. I. Hennet	L. W. PERDIG
1956		
E. Selth	P. H. Shappere	
1957	<b>-</b>	
D. M. Robertson		
1961		
N. R. Jeffery		
1962		
K. Buchanan	C. G. Middleton	L. M. Taylor
1963		-
R. N. Ponton		
1964		
W, L. Gray	G. Smith	H. E. Sterck
1965		
M. J. Kindermann	F. D. Hogarth	J. T. Daw
1966		
. E. Worrall	T. Allington	C. P. Weatherill
.967		
N. A. Melville	H. Wodsworth	P. Simpson
968		
R. G. Holden	B. Newgreen	L. K. Rodda
1969		
L. Barrett	F. F. Durham	G. F. Tillotson
1970	the December of	
C. C. Gregory	R. Proctor	
1971 N. C. Cualau	D I Manubald	LT D Contain
A. C. Cugley	R. L. Newbold	H. R. Smith
1972 I. D. Miller		K Speelerer
H. D. Miller	A. Pearson	K. Speakman
1973		

VICTORIA	(Continued)	
1974		
A. F. Chiron		
1977		
K. R. Waite	E. J. Spreadborough	J. W. Daw
N. T. O'Brien		
1978		
G. A. Minniece	D. F. Reyment	
1979		
P. A. Humphreys 1980	D. W. Fox	L. W. Taylor
G Lee		
1983		
J. A. Harris	J. R. Gunn	Mrs J Clayfie
1984	J. R. Olim	niis y chuyin
L Goding	T. W. George	A. Inglis
1985		
G. Fox	G. J. Tillotson	R. Alaimo
B Trickey	P. Stiglich	G. Sharpe
1987		
J. Downie	R. Joy	P. Mollison
1989		
D Reyment		
1990		
E Nicholls	D Trainor	
1992		~ ~ ·
G. Elder	B. Moore	B. Stahmer
1993 D. W. L		
R. Waite 1994	R. E. Jackson	
D. Graeme Ross	Bob Russell	
1995	DOD Russell	
Graeme Reddaway		
1996		
Leighton Beamsley (AI	.C Nominee)	
1997	,	
Stephen Spreadborough	1	

4

#### WESTERN AUSTRALIA

1948		
I. J. Taylor	W. J. Bruce	C. E. M. Hickey
R. W. Elliott	H. J. Carmichael	H.A Wodd
D. S. Aarons	G. Clarke	H. B. Angus
A. R. V. Page	D. C. Johnson	J. L. Carden
H. G. Clifton	W. H. Whiteman	E. F. Johnson
F. B. Hicks	T. Stewart	E. R. Berty
F. Horner	L. O. Burlinson	G. A. Kennedy
1953		
H. Rudderham	E. L. Berry	R.H. Angus
1955		
L. F. Banyard	F. King	R. Wheatley
J. Morrison	R. V. Byers	A. Swan
F. McKenzie	H. V. Horner	
1957		
E. Biddle	W. Brown	K. Forsythe
1963		
B. F. Blight	P. R. Stratton	V. B. A. Ellis
1964		
P. J. Reid	F. Banyard	
1965		
P. J. Turnbull (A. L. C. Nomin	nee)	
1966		
A. E. Weaver	J. P. Brewer	N. J. Kidson
1967		
H. Balinski		
1968		
J. Cowling	F. B. Radford	
1970		
C. Allman		
1972		
I. Spiers		
1973		
R. J. Marshall	L. N. Gaunt	
1975		
M. Redfern	K. Sugars	
1977		
W. A. Keen	R. A. Stratton	
1979		
R. J. Reiger	G. P. Rose	
1980		
C. Coates		
1980		

#### WESTERN AUSTRALIA

4

#### (Continued)

1981		
B. J. Griffin	G. J. Hill	D. A. Rudderham
1982		
P. M. Smirk	M. J. Stokes	
1983		
J. Kennedy		
1984		
І. Тоу	J. (Jan) Brewer	
1985		
F. Hastings	B. Jackson	W Magee
1986		U
R. Taylor	T. Riordan	
1987		
J. Keen		
1990		
L. R. Morley		
1991		
R. Whiteman	G. Taylor	
1992		
P. Cann	F. Poat	
1993		
B. Groves		
1994		
Chris Milne	Roger Smith	
1995	-	
Colin Mounsey	Stephen Andrew Mounsey	Lindsay Scott
John Edward Denic		
1997		
Mark Hickey	Mavis Owens	
•		

#### QUEENSLAND

1968 E. V. Downes 1995 Raymond Trevaskis

#### UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

1963 E. F. Corrigan

### Australian Lacrosse Council Garland McHarg Trophy

Year	Winner	Venue
1910	Victoria	Adelaide
1912	Victoria	Melbourne
1920	South Australia	Sydney
1923	South Australia	Brisbane
1926	South Australia	Adelaide
1929	Victoria	Perth
1932	Victoria	Melbourne
1936	Victoria	Adelaide
1939	Victoria	Brisbane
1947	Western Australia	Perth
1950	Victoria	Melbourne
1953	Victoria	Adelaide
1956	Victoria	Perth
1959	South Australia	Melbourne
1962	South Australia	Adelaide
1965	Victoria	Perth
1968	Victoria	Melbourne
1970	Victoria	Adelaide
1972	Western Australia	Perth
1974	Victoria	Melbourne
1976	South Australia	Adelaide
1977	South Australia	Perth
1979	Victoria	Melbourne
1981	Western Australia	Adelaide
1982	Western Australia	Perth
1983	South Australia	Melbourne
1984	Western Australia	Adelaide
1985	Western Australia	Perth
1986	Victoria	Adelaide
1987	Victoria	Melbourne
1988	Western Australia	Adelaide
1989	Western Australia	Melbourne
1990	Western Australia	Perth
1991	Western Australia	Adelaide
1992	Victoria	Melbourne
1993	Western Australia	Perth
1994	Victoria	Adelaide
1995	Western Australia	Melbourne
1996	Western Australia	Perth
1997	Victoria	Adelaide
1998	Victoria	Victoria

Australian Lacrosse Council Best & Fairest Winners		
Year	Winner	State
Brady Award		
1956	A. H. Gandy	South Australia
1957	R. Dickson	Victoria
1958	R. E. Wakelin	South Australia
1959	R. W. Turner	South Australia
A L C Trophy		
1960	G. Reid	Victoria
1961	D. Miller	Victoria
1962	A. Jennings	South Australia
Isaachsen Troph	у	
1963	A. Jennings	South Australia
1964	M. Aldenhaven	South Australia
1965	T. Piddington	South Australia
1966	B. Griffin	Western Australia
1967	G. Bower	South Australia
1968	B. Vandepeer	South Australia
1969	R. Turnbull	Western Australia
1970	M. Raggett	South Australia
1971	R. Swadling	Western Australia
1972	R. Cordell	Victoria
1973	B. Benger / W. Hobbs	South Australia
1974	L. Morley	Western Australia
1975	R. Turnbull	Western Australia
1976	J. Wiles	South Australia
1977	R. Turnbull	Western Australia
1978	G. Tillotson	Victoria
197 <b>9</b>	G. Fox	Victoria
1980	R. Turnbull / G. Wheatley	Western Australia
1981	J. Foster *	South Australia
1982	K. Johnson *	Western Australia

	А	ustralian Lacrosse Cou Best & Fairest Winne	
Year	·	Winner	State
Isaachsen T	rophy cor	ıt.	
1983		J. Fay *	Western Australia
1984		M. Weir	South Australia
1985		G. Purdie	Victoria
1986		J. Hill / P. Fazzini	South Australia
1987		J. Kennedy	Western Australia
1988		G. Tillotson	Victoria
1989		J. Hill	South Australia
1990		P. Cook	Victoria
1991		C. Brown	Victoria
1992		C. Bell	Victoria
1993		L. Ovens	Victoria
1994		C McLaughlin	Victoria
1995		J Mihelios	South Australia
1996		R Stark	Victoria
1997		M Schomburg	Western Australia
1998	Joint	R Stark	Victoria
1998	Winners	D Nicholas	Victoria

٠

\* U. S. A. Players

#### Australian Lacrosse Council Directors

The Australian Lacrosse Council Ltd was incorporated on 9th November 1992. The following is a listing of those individuals who have served as Directors since 1992.

Douglas William Fox	1992 -
Peter Bryant Hobbs	1992 -
Dennis Edward Mulroney	1992 - 1995
Donald Alexander Rudderham	1992 - 1994
Malcolm John Stokes	1992 -
Raymond John Trevaskis	1992 - 1993
Leighton Stuart Beamsley	1993 -
Rob Reiger	1994 - 1995
Mavis Owens	1995 -
Graeme Reddaway	1995 -

· //	Senior Registrations						Junior Registrations					GRAND			
	S.A.	Vic.		N.S.W.	Qld.	Tas.	TOTAL	S.A.	Vic.	W.A.	N.S.W.	Qtd.	Tas.	TOTAL	TOTAL
1970	353	504	242				1,099	364	430	263				1,057	2,156
1971	323	478	242				1,043	389	480	266				1,135	2,178
1972	320	476	268				1,064	455	570	323				1,348	2,412
1973	339	483	284				1,106	465	623	342				1,430	2,536
1974	360	498	299				1,157	527	587	312				1,426	2,583
1975	352	554	248				1,154	535	755	369				1,659	2,813
1976	351	545	296				1,192	531	675	338				1,544	2,736
1977	417	531	314				1,262	628	656	392				1,676	2,938
1978	470	536	368				1,374	644	732	376				1,752	3,126
1979	609	653	368				1,630	887	648	250				1,785	3,415
1980	477	668	352				1,497	1,302	546	302				2,150	3,647
1981	485	610	392				1,487	1,400	608	370				2,378	3,865
1982	506	618	293				1,417	551	645	525				1,721	3,138
1983	522	641	430				1,593	592	750	424				1,766	3,359
1984	548	611	406				1,565	512	741	441				1,694	3,259
1985	437	588	394				1,419	463	814	420				1,697	3,116
1986	397	518	344				1,259	471	545	220				1,236	2,495
1987	494	545	336				1,375	461	697	400				1,558	2,933
1988	515	521	336				1,372	460	613	191				1,264	2,636
1989	515	558	250				1,323	458	522	170				1,150	2,473
1990	417	540	306				1,263	429	579	183				1,191	2,454
1991	401	551 528	294				1,246	429	675	200				1,304	2,550
1992	486	538	326				1,350	447	701	232				1,380	2,730
1993	397	495	306	15	25	~	1,198	352	775	179				1,306	2,504
1994	361	457	296	64 72	35		0 1,233	321	647	558	73	0	(		2,832
1995	406	485	261	72	37			317	650	504	65	12	54		2,887
1996	402	452	268	83	60 60			263	714	654	41	120	55		3,132
1997 1998	419 413	416 413	268 231	91 43	50 30		0 1,274 0 1,150	291 302	607 631	620 653	35 0	120 75	35 35		2,982 2,846

1998 Annual Report

•

			Australian Lacross							
Detailed Registration Information										
	South Australia	Victoria	Western Australia	New South Wales	Queensland	Tasmania	TOTAL			
998		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				· · · ·				
FIELD LACROSSE						•				
Affiliated Clubs	10	13	7	2		· · ·	32			
Feams		-								
Open Age	21	23	12	5		2	63			
Junior	22	47	14	0	6	4	93			
Total	43	70	26	5	6	6	156			
			demonative e							
Registered Players										
Open Age	413	413	231	43	30	20	1,150			
Junior	302	631	653	0	75	35	1,696			
Total	715	1,044	884	43	105	55	2,846			
1997										
FIELD LACROSSE										
Affiliated Clubs	10	13	7				30			
Teams										
Open Age	20	26	12	5	2		65			
	21	48	13	1	8		91			
Junier	41	74	25	6	10	0	156			
Junior Total										
Total					50	30	1,274			
Total Registered Players	419	416	268	91		,,,,,,	1,479			
	419 291	416 607	268 620	35	120	35	1,274			

-

			Australian Lacross	e Council Ltd							
Detailed Registration Information											
<u></u>	South Australia	Victoria	Western Australia	New South Wales	Queensland	Tasmania	ΤΟΤΛΙ				
996						<u> </u>					
TELD LACROSSE											
Affiliated Clubs	10	14	7				3				
'eams											
Open Age	23	28	13	5	3		7				
Junior	25	52	17	3	8	6	21				
Total	48	80	30	8	11	6	18				
Registered Players											
Open Age	402	452	268	83	60	20	1,28				
Junior	263	714	654	41	120	55	1,84				
Total	665	1,166	922	124	180	75	3,13				
995											
TELD LACROSSE											
Affiliated Clubs	10	14					3				
'eams											
Open Age	22	28	ti		3		6				
Junior	24	58	17		-	6	10				
Total	46	86	28	0	3	6	16				
Registered Players											
Open Age	406	485	261	72	37	24	1,28				
Junior	317	650	504	65	12	54	1,60				
Total	723	1,135	765	137	49	78	2,88				

.

1998 Annual Report

			Australian Lacross	e Council Ltd						
			Detailed Registratio	n Information						
	South Australia Victoria Western Australia New South Wales Queensland Tasmania									
1994			·····							
FIELD LACROSSE										
Affiliated Clubs	10	14	8			······				
Feams										
Open Age	19	27	16				61			
Junior	16	57	14				8			
Total	35	84	30	()	0	U	14			
Registered Players										
Open Age	361	457	296	64	35	20	1,23			
Junior	321	647	558	73	0	0	1,59			
Total	682	1,104	854	137	35	20	2,83			

-